


5D.

EXY










20f10
developed with a log cabin and associated parking. The zoning code allows residential uses in

commercial zones with an approved use permit.

Summary/Background

The log cabin was built in 1992 to serve as a sales office for “Real Log Homes”. It has also been occupied
as a real estate office and most recently has been the home for the C.O.R.E. Public Charter School.

The School is closing at the end of June and the property owner is requesting the conditional use permit
(CUP) to convert the building to a residential use.

Project Analysis

The zoning ordinance allows residential uses within a commercial zone upon approval of a conditional
use permit. The surrounding neighborhood is a mix of commercial and residential uses as indicated on
the aerial exhibit (Attachment 2).

The structure is a two-story, 4,631 square foot log cabin designed as a residential home. The
conversion from the school use to the residential use will not require much renovation other than
cleaning and new carpeting as outlined in the project description provided by the owner (Attachment
3). Converting the building to residential will not create any significant impacts and because the zoning
will remain commercial, the opportunity to establish a commercial use in the future will exist without
requiring any rezoning of the property.

Once the structure is converted to a single family residence, the conditional use permit will be in place
and remain vested as long as the use remains single family residential regardless of ownership. Should
the structure be converted back to a commercial use for more than twelve months, the CUP would be
invalidated and a new CUP would be required for any future residential use. It should also be noted
that this CUP is for a single family home. Any different use of the structure (other than as allowed CH
zone) such as multiple residential units or mixed use may require an amendment to the existing CUP or
approval of a new permit.

In order to approve a conditional use permit, the following findings must be made:

1. The proposed use or development is substantially consistent with the City of Colfax general
plan and any applicable specific plan.

2. The proposed use or development generally conforms with all applicable standards and
requirements of this title.

3. The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use or development is generally
compatible with and shall not adversely affect or be materially detrimental to the health,
safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in the area, or be detrimental or injurious to
public or private property or improvements.

City of Colfax 2
Staff Report June 12,2019 Pannu Conditional Use Permit



4. The proposed use will not interfere with the nature and condition of the adjacent uses and
structures.

Along with the findings, conditions of approval have been prepared to ensure the use does not
expand, remains a single-family use, and that new owners are notified that the property is zoned
commercial.

Environmental Review

The project has been determined to be exempt from CEQA requirements per section 15301,
existing facilities and no additional environmental review is required.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached resolution approving the conditional use permit
for 1033 S. Auburn Street.

Attachments
1. Resolution 17-2019
2. Location Exhibit
3. Project Description
4. Photographs provided by the applicant

City of Colfax 3
Staff Report June 12,2019 Pannu Conditional Use Permit



City of Colfax

City Council
Resolution O 17-2019

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLFAX
APPROVING THE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 1033 S. AUBURN STREET
TO ALLOW A SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE IN A CH (HIGHWAY
COMMERCIAL) ZONE

WHEREAS, the property owner, Paul Pannu has applied for a conditional use permit to convert the log
cabin structure at 1033 S Auburn Street to single family residential use; and

WHEREAS, the project was noticed as a public hearing as required by state law and City Code; and

WHEREAS, the project has been determined to be exempt from CEQA per section 15301, existing facilities and
no additional environmental review is required; and

WHEREAS, the conditions of approval have been prepared and are attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution;
and

WHEREAS, the following findings are required

Conditional Use Permit Findings:

1. The proposed use or development is substantially consistent with the City of Colfax general plan in
that the property is designated commercial and the residential use is allowed with a conditional use
permit.

2. The proposed use or development generally conforms with the applicable standards and requirements
of this title. The site as developed meets or exceeds all standards and regulations to establish a
residential use in a commercial zone.

3. The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use or development is generally
compatible with and shall not adversely affect or be materially detrimental to the health, safety, or
welfare of persons residing or working in the area, or be detrimental or injurious to public or private
property or improvements in that the residential use is situated on a one acre parcel with access and
parking exceeding code requirements.

4. The proposed use will not interfere with the nature and condition of the adjacent uses and structures
in that surrounding uses consist of both commercial and residential uses compatible with the proposed
use.

City of Colfax 1
Resolution 17-2019 Pannu Conditional Use Permit



Sof10

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular
Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12" day of June 2019 by the following vote
of the Council:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Joe Fatula, Mayor

ATTEST:

Wes Heathcock, City Manager

City of Colfax 2
Resolution 17-2019 Pannu Conditional Use Permit



6 0of 10
Exhibit A

1033 S. Auburn Street
Pannu Conditional Use Permit
Conditions of Approval

1. This conditional use permit shall expire and become null and void if not
effectuated within twenty-four (24) months after the effective date of approval
(valid through June 12, 2021).

2. This conditional use permit approved for the conversion of the log cabin structure
at 1033 S. Auburn Street from a commercial business to a single family
residential unit. Any other use of the structure such as to mixed use
commercial/residential or to multifamily units may require amending the existing
permit or approval of a new permit.

3. Upon any change of ownership, notice shall be provided to the new owners of
the current commercial zoning status of the property and of the existence of the
approved conditional use permit allowing the single family residence.



7 of 10

Location Map

Pannu Conditional Use Permit

e Mﬂm[k\@f@@{k S@E@@M@ﬂ@m
f (G \W@g[}ﬂ




8 0of 10









Staff Report to City Council

FOR THE JUNE 12, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

From: Amy Feagans, City Planner
Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager
Subject: Ordinance Introduction and Public Hearing on the Planned Development Permit

and Design Review for the Shadow Wood Residential Development Project
Budget Impact Overview:

N/A: & | Funded: Un-funded: Amount: | Fund(s):

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct a Public Hearing, discuss and consider adopting
Resolution 18-2019 approving the Planned Development Permit and Design Review of the Shadow
Wood Development Project and Introduce Ordinance 539 Amending the Colfax Municipal Code
Chapter 16.24 to Allow Amendment or Correction of Final Subdivision Maps (First Reading)

Project Notice
This public hearing has been noticed in accordance with the requirements of California Government
Code Title 7, Division 1 “Planning and Land Use” section 65000 et seq., as amended.

Project Information

Project Title: Shadow Wood Planned Development and Design Review Permit
Applicant/Owner: David Carter / Judy Lay

Location Shadow Wood Place and Kneeland Street

Land Use (existing) Vacant with some exposed retaining walls from previous construction,

property was recently cleared of shrubbery and debris.
Assessor’s Parcel Number:  006-061-023 thru 006-061-042 (20 lots)
Zoning District: RM-2; Multi-family Residential High Density; Historic Overlay
General Plan Designation:  Medium-high Residential

Surrounding Uses/Zoning

North: Depot Street, Single family residential; R-1-5
South: Single family residential; RM-2, CR
East: Single family residential; CR
West: Single family residential; RM-2
City of Colfax 1

Staff Report June 12, 2019 Shadow Wood PD and Design Review



2 of 37
Project Description /Request
The Shadow Wood development as proposed is a 20-unit, small lot, single family residential
development project located on Shadow Wood Place, west of Kneeland Street and south of Depot
Street, just west of downtown.

The applicant is requesting approval of a planned development permit to allow development of
the houses on the small lots and to allow modification of the parking requirements as it relates to
location and placement of off street parking spaces on the small lots. The PD permit process is
designed to allow flexibility from the underlying code requirements (such as setbacks lot coverage, and
parking requirements) without going through the Variance process for master planned projects such as
this where it can be demonstrated that such flexibility from the code allows for a more creative and
efficient use of the land.

The design review entitlement is required for approval of the master design plans prior to
construction of the houses on the lots.

Background

Original Approval

The Shadow Wood project was originally approved in 1978. The entitlements approved at that time
include the twenty lot tentative subdivision map, a planned unit development permit, and a variance for
reduced setbacks and for the hammerhead turn around at the end of the street. The project as designed
was more of a townhouse concept with According to the current project engineer, improvement plans
were approved by the City in 1979 and site work and construction for the site work and underground
utilities (water, sewer and dry utilities) started including constructing the existing retaining walls and
pad grading. The final subdivision map (Attachment 3) creating the twenty lots was recorded on July
16, 1980.

Project Analysis

Planned Development Permit

As stated in section 17.88.010, the purpose of the planned development is to “allow diversification in
the relationships between building, design, placement, and open spaces. . .” This subdivision was
originally approved as a “planned development” but that entitlement expired when construction was
discontinued and the project was not fully vested. Therefore a new planned development permit (PD
permit) is required with this current project request. The PD permit addresses the following:

Setbacks

Lot coverage

Open space requirements
Parking requirements
Street Design

City of Colfax 2
Staff Report June 12, 2019 Shadow Wood Development Project



3of37
The twenty lots are small in size for development with single family homes and therefore require

unique design applications such as reduced setbacks/minimum open space requirements, and increased
lot coverage. On a lot by lot basis, the following modifications are proposed:

Lot No. Coverage Lot Width Min. Setback

Code: 40% 50’ Front 20’ | Side 6’ | Rear 20’
1 32.8 37 20 5 16’ 8
2 37.7 32 20 5 16’ 8
3 37.7 32 20 5 16’ 8
4 37.7 32 20 5 16’ 8
5 37.7 32 20 5 16’ 8
6 37.7 32 20 5 16’ 8
7 37.7 32 20 5 16’ 8
8 37.7 32 20 5 16’ 8
9 35.3 38 5 5 16> 8”
10 29.9 43.67 4 9.5 18.4
11 37.1 39.81 5 8 <10
12 40.8 38 5 5 <10
13 44.2 32 20 5 <10
14 44.4 32 20 5 <10
15 44.5 32 20 5 <10
16 44.6 32 20 5 <10
17 44.6 32 20 5 <10
18 44.7 32 20 5 <10
19 44.8 32 20 5 <10
20 35.8 33.04 20 5 <10

Open Space
The zoning code requires minimum of 200 square feet of “private” open space per lot. This is achieved

in the side and rear yards.

Parking
The zoning code requires two parking spaces for single family residential lots. Parking is to be located

outside of the front yard setback. Given the small size and width of these lots — this requirement is not
feasible. The two spaces will be located within the front yard for the majority of the lots. With lots 9,
10, 11 and 12, parking will be provided along the side of the house in tandem style. There will also be
six on-street guest parking spaces (three on each side of the street located mid-block).

Shadow Wood Place Street Design

The street design for Shadow Wood Place has 40 feet of right of way with curb and gutter on both
sides and a four-foot sidewalk on the south side; in front of lots 11 — 20 (refer to Attachment 4). The
street has been redesigned from the original 1980s approval of a hammer head turn-around at the end
to now be a cul-de-sac design as requested by the Fire Marshal.

City of Colfax 3
Staff Report June 12, 2019 Shadow Wood Development Project






The ordinance has been prepared by the City Attorney (Attachment 2)

Environmental Review

This project has been determined to be exempt from CEQA requirements per section 15332, in-fill
development projects. The project is consistent with the City General Plan and Zone District, is less
than five acres and is substantially surrounded by urban use. The site has no value for endangered
species and can be served by utilities. The project will not result in significant traffic, noise. Air
quality, or water quality impacts. Therefore the project complies with the guidelines for an exemption.

Outside Agency Review and Comment

The project description and site plan/map was circulated to those agencies and departments that are
required to review or have expressed an interest in reviewing and commenting on development
projects within the City of Colfax. Where appropriate, the project has been modified or conditions of
approval have been included based on comments received.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached resolution to: Approved the Planned
Development permit and Design Review permit for the Shadow Wood Development project and
introduce the attached ordinance to amend the subdivision ordinance to allow for minor adjustments to
final maps.

Attachments
Resolution No. 18-2019

—_

2. Ordinance No. 539
3. Original 1980 recorded final subdivision map
4. Site Plan/ Lot Layout
5. Model Units A, B and C plans
6. Easement/ exhibit
7. Colored elevation renderings
8.  Project description
9.  Existing site conditions - photographs
City of Colfax 5

Staff Report June 12, 2019 Shadow Wood Development Project



City of Colfax

City Council
Resolution O 18-2019

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLFAX
APPROVING THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AND DESIGN REVIEW
OF THE SHADOW WOOD DEVELOPMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, the property owner/applicant, David Carter has submitted an application for a Planned
Development Permit and Design Review Permit; and

WHEREAS, Notice of the meeting has been given at the time and in the manner required by State
Law and City Code; and

WHEREAS, the project is exempt from CEQA requirements in accordance with section 15332, in-fill
development projects; and

WHEREAS, the project as proposed is consistent with the City’s General Plan, Zoning and the Colfax
Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the conditions of approval have been prepared and are attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution;
and

WHEREAS, the proposed planned development design meets the findings as follows:
Planned Development Findings:

1. The use and design of the proposed development conforms with the requirements of the
relevant planned development zone district in the design allows for the creative and efficient
use of the land.

2. The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use or development is compatible
with and will not adversely affect or be materially detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare
of persons residing or working in the area, and will not be detrimental or injurious to public or
private party improvements in that the design of the subdivision and the design of the homes is
compatible with surrounding development; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project complies with the intent and purpose of the development standards
of the City; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project meets the required Historic District Design Review findings as
follows:

Design Review Findings:

City of Colfax 1
Resolution 18-2019 Shadow Wood Residential Development Project



7 of 37

1. The project will maintain the small-town character that makes Colfax a desirable place to live
in that the homes are designed to fit on the small lots

2. The project will maintain and enhance the City’s character and visual appearance in order to
create a quality future community in that the homes are of a craftsman style design with
exterior paint colors selected from the list of approved paint colors for the historic district.

3. The project will maintain and enhance the historic resources, qualities, and character of the
historic district.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council approves the Planned Development
Permit and the Design Review Permit for the Shadow Wood Development project.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12" day of June 2019 by the
following vote of the Council:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Joe Fatula, Mayor

ATTEST:

Wes Heathcock, City Manager

City of Colfax 2
Resolution 18-2019 Shadow Wood Residential Development Project



8 of 37

Exhibit A
Shadow Wood Subdivision
Conditions of Approval

Planning

1. The applicant shall submit final site development plans to the City that substantially
conform to the exhibits referenced in the staff report dated June 12, 2019.

2. The owner/applicant shall consult with the Sheriff’s Department to incorporate all
reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be
considered:

a. A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall
be constructed around the perimeter of the construction areas.

b. Security measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit
appliances.

c. Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-site at
intersections or screen overhead lighting.

3. Prior to grading and/or construction, a Traffic Control Plan for roadways and
intersections affected by construction shall be prepared. The traffic control plan shall be
re viewed and approved by the city prior to grading and/or construction. The Traffic
Control Plan shall designate haul routes and comply with requirements in the
encroachment permits issued by City of Colfax Public Works. The Traffic Control Plan
prepared by the project construction contractor(s) shall, at minimum, include the
following measures: Maintaining the maximum amount of travel lane capacity during
non-construction periods, possible, and advanced notice to drivers through the
provision of construction signage. Maintaining alternate one-way traffic flow past the
laydown area and site access when feasible.

4. Concrete pads (or similar material) for the storage or garbage and recycling bins shall be
designated on the site plan and incorporated into the side yards or somewhere on site
away from public view to the extent possible. This plan shall be submitted for review
and approval by the planning director and community services director prior to issuance
of any building permit.

5. Construction equipment noise shall be minimized during project construction by
muffling and shielding intakes and exhaust on construction equipment (per the
manufacturer's specifications) and by shrouding or shielding impact tools, where used.
The City's construction specifications shall also require that the contractor select staging
areas as far as feasibly possible from sensitive receptors.



9 of 37

6. Construction contractors shall locate fixed construction equipment (such as
compressors and generators) and construction staging areas as far as possible from
nearby residences. If feasible, noise barriers shall be used at the construction site and
staging area. Temporary walls, stockpiles of excavated materials, or moveable sound
barrier curtains would be appropriate in instances where construction noise would
exceed 90 dBA and occur within less than 50 feet from a sensitive receptor. The final
selection of noise barriers will be subject to the City's approval and shall provide a
minimum 10 dBA reduction in construction noise levels.

7. No amplified sources (e.g., stereo "boom boxes") shall be used in the vicinity of
residences during project construction.

8. Prior to the commencement of grading and/or construction activities, the
owner/applicant shall submit an erosion control plan to the City for review and
approval. The plan shall identify protective measures to be taken during excavation,
temporary stockpiling, any reuse or disposal, and revegetation. These measures shall
conform to geotechnical reports, the City of Colfax requirements and the County of
Placer Erosion and Sedimentation Control Standards and Specifications.

9. The use of artificial turf shall not be allowed in the historic district if visible from any
public right of way.

10. The residential building permit plans shall be in substantial compliance with the plans
approved with this submittal dated 6-12 19.

PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING

1. The applicant shall be responsible for all City map check, plan check and inspection
costs. The Applicant shall establish a Developer Deposit Account with the City upon the
initiation of plan check services.

2. The applicant will provide improvement security in conformance with CMC 16.48.030.

3. Allimprovements shall be designed in accordance with the City of Colfax Municipal
Code, and applicable City, Placer County and Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) public
works standards (Public Works Standards), except as specifically noted otherwise in
these conditions.

4. All existing and proposed new utilities to serve the project, both on-site and along
project frontages, shall be placed underground. Exceptions may be allowed for surface
mounted transformers, pedestal mounted terminal boxes and meter cabinets.



10.

11.

A detailed Soils Investigation/Geotechnical Report shall be prepared and submitted for
review. The report shall address, at a minimum, potential geologic hazards in the area,
potential historic mine shafts and vents, possible presence of asbestos-bearing rock, R-
values, expansive soils and seismic risk. The improvement plans shall incorporate all
design and construction criteria recommended in the Geotechnical Report.

Dust control specifications shall be included on the improvement plans to minimize dust
nuisance during construction. Dust control measures shall be developed to take into
account the possible presence of asbestos bearing rock formations and the measures
necessary to deal with this type of dust.

The applicant shall re-vegetate cut and fill areas as soon as possible using native seed
mixes and compatible plantings as specified by the City Engineer and the Soil
Conservation Service.

The applicant shall conduct all soil stabilization activities pursuant to City Engineering
Department and Soil Conservation Service practices and techniques. Stabilization details
shall be shown on the improvement plans for temporary and permanent conditions.

Any retaining walls necessary as a part of the site grading shall be included on the
grading plan for review and approval of the City Engineer. Any retaining walls in excess
of 3-ft in exposed height or that may be influenced by adjacent structures (existing or
future structures) shall have design calculations prepared and submitted to the City
Engineer and Building Department for review.

A drainage report prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall be submitted
for review with the initial submittal of the Improvement Plans for the entire subdivision.
The report shall include hydrologic and hydraulic calculations to support the design and
sizing of all public and private drainage facilities including storm drains, detention
facilities and weirs.

Storm-water detention shall be provided per the requirements of the final on-site
project drainage analysis and meet local and State drainage requirements. Design of
storm water detention facilities shall be subject to City standards and the review and
approval of the City Engineer. Stormwater plans shall include the following:

a. The velocity of concentrated storm flows from impervious surfaces should be
reduced by the use of energy dissipaters. These structures should be placed so
that the velocity reduction occurs before water enters existing erodible areas such
as wetlands, creeks or ditches.

b. The perimeter of the development shall be protected against surface runoff from
adjacent properties in a manner acceptable to the City Engineer.






26.

22.

23.

24,

25.

27.

28.

29.

If any hazardous material is encountered during the construction of this project, all work
shall be immediately stopped and the Cal Fire, Placer County Department of
Environmental Health or other designated agency, and the City Inspector shall be
notified immediately. Work shall not proceed until clearance has been issued by all of
these agencies.

Prior to final preparation of the road subgrade and placement of road base materials, all
underground utilities shall be installed and service connections terminated (stubbed-
out) to a point at least behind the planned sidewalk or, in the case where no sidewalk is
planned, a point should be a minimum of 5 feet beyond the edge of the street or road.
Public utilities, Cable TV, sanitary sewers, and water lines, shall be installed in a manner
that will not disturb the street pavement, curb, gutter and sidewalk, when future service
connections or extensions are made.

Where soil or geologic conditions encountered in grading operations are different from
that anticipated in the soil and/or geologic investigation report, or where such
conditions warrant changes to the recommendations contained in the original soil
investigation, a revised soil or geologic report shall be submitted for approval by the City
Engineer. Additionally, if field conditions warrant installation of any subdrains, the
location, size and construction details must be provided to the City for review and
approval prior to construction and documented on as-built plans.

All new fire hydrants shall be securely covered with burlaps sacks or heavy-duty plastic
until the hydrants have been tested and found to be in conformance with City flow
requirements. No storage of combustible materials or construction of building shall be
permitted until all hydrants meet City flow requirements.

Prior to placing the final lift of asphalt, all public storm drains and sanitary sewer lines
shall be video inspected at the Applicant's expense. All video tapes shall be submitted to
the City Engineer for review. If any inadequacies are found, they shall be repaired prior
to the placement of the final lift of asphalt.

All streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks or other public facilities damaged in the course of
construction associated with this Project shall be the responsibility of the Applicant and
shall be repaired to the satisfaction of the City Engineer at the Applicant's expense.

After all of the new underground utilities within existing public streets have been
installed, the affected areas shall be milled and repaved (overlaid) to present a neat
finished and smooth pavement area. Multiple trench patches are not acceptable.

All construction stormwater pollution prevention best management practices (BMP's)
shall be installed as the first order of work and in accordance with the State Water
Resources Control Board's General Construction Permit for Stormwater Discharges
Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities and the Applicant's Storm



Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). All stormwater BMP's shall be maintained to
the satisfaction of the Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD), Qualified SWPPP Practitioner
(QSP), and the City Engineer.

30. All construction and grading activities on the site shall be governed by the City’s noise
ordinance and be limited to between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday
and 8:00 a.m. to 7:00 a.m. on Saturday. No work shall be performed on Sunday or state
and federal recognized holidays, unless approved by City engineer.

31. Rough grading shall be performed over the subdivision for future building pads to the
extent necessary to prevent the need for grading across newly created lot lines.

32. Prior to SUBMITTAL OF THE IMPROVEMENT PLANS, the applicant shall:

a. Provide a preliminary report and schematic plan prepared by a registered Civil Engineer
of the proposed public potable water system with sufficient detail for PCWA to perform
a hydraulic model of the proposed improvements to verify its ability to meet all of the
system requirements.

b. Provide a report, including calculations, demonstrating sufficient water pressure and
flow for operation of fire hydrants and individual fire sprinklers systems to each building
can be provided.

33. Prior to APPROVAL OF THE IMPROVEMENT PLANS, the applicant shall:

a. Provide written acknowledgment by the Geotechnical Engineer of Record that
the Plans incorporate all design and construction criteria specified in the
Geotechnical Report.

b. Submit a copy of the Notice of Intent and WDID# for coverage under the State
Water Resources Control Board' General Construction Permit for Stormwater
Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Order
2009-0009-DWAQ).

c. To the satisfaction of the PCWA, provide a final PS&E (plans, specifications, and
estimate) package for the water system improvements including pressure
reducing station, mains, valves and all associated piping.

d. Provide the following:
1) Public Street Repair Plan
2) Utility Plan and Joint Trench Plan
3) Construction Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP)
4) Drainage Report

13 of 37



5) Post-Construction Stormwater Runoff Management Plan (SRMP)
6) Geotechnical Report
7) Construction Traffic Control Plan.

34. Prior to COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES, the Applicant shall:
a. Pay off all current cash deposit account balances with the City.

b. Pay an inspection fee in an amount to be determined at the time of commencement for
the City's inspection of the public improvements.

c. Conduct a pre-construction meeting with representatives of the City whereby the
Applicant, the Legally Responsible Party (LRP), Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (QSP),
Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD), and/or the Contractor provides the following:

(1) Six (6) full-size bond copies of the approved Improvement Plans for the City's
use.

(2) One (1) job-site copy of the latest edition of the Public Works Standards for
the Contractor use.

(3) One (1) job-site copy of the SWPPP for use by the LRP, QSP, QSD, and
Contractor.

35. Prior to RECORDATION OF THE AMENDED FINAL MAP, the Applicant shall:

a. Construct all public and private improvements to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. Alternatively, the Applicant may enter into a Subdivision Improvement
Agreement with the City agreeing for completion all of the public and private
Improvements prior to occupancy of the first unit. Such an agreement will
require the Applicant to provide bonds, proof of workers compensation
insurance, and general liability insurance in the forms and amounts as deemed
satisfactory to the City.

b. Abandon any existing easements that are relocated or otherwise no longer
needed.

c. Submit signed deeds with Certificates of Acceptance for all dedications to the
City of Colfax.

36. Prior to APPROVAL OF A BUILDING PERMIT, the Applicant shall:

a. Pay all cash deposit account balances and current City, PCWA, School and Fire
fees (Mitigation & Capacity) based on the rate in effect at the time of permit

issuance, irrespective of the date of vesting of the Vesting Tentative Map.




b. Complete the required PCWA water system improvements including the
pressure reducing station and all necessary piping up to, and including the points
of connection to the private water system. Said improvements shall be tested to
the satisfaction of the PCWA, City Engineer and Fire.

37. Prior to OCCUPANCY OF ANY BUILDING, the Applicant shall:

a. Submit an inspector's punch list indicating that all of the improvements for each
phase are constructed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

b. Restore all adjacent off-site road surfaces to pre-project conditions.

c. Submit a certification by the Geotechnical Engineer of Record that all the work
has been completed in substantial conformance with the recommendations in
Soils Investigation/Geotechnical Report.

d. Submit testing certification all backflow devices installed.

e. Provide a Mylar and digital copy of the Improvement Plans that include all as-
built or field changes, in digital AutoCAD (.dwg) and (.shp) format (void of any
AutoCAD block entities preventing full editing capabilities of the drawings),
compatible with the City's current version, and tied to the City's coordinate
system.

f.  Provide a letter stating that all of the Developer’s Conditions of Approval have
been met.

g. Provide a letter from the Civil Engineer of Record certifying that all the site
improvements were constructed and inspected in substantial conformance with
the approved plans and City Standards.

h. Provide letter(s) from the Architect of Record, Structural Engineer of Record and
all other design professionals who signed the building permit plan submittal
indicating that all the building improvements have been constructed in
substantial conformance with their plans.

g. Either enter into and record a Post-Construction Stormwater Operations and
Maintenance Agreement with the City that shall be transferrable to the
established HOA, or include the post construction stormwater operations and
maintenance obligation in the CC&Rs.

END OF CONDITIONS



CITY OF COLFAX
ORDINANCE NO. 539
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAX AMENDING COLFAXMUNICIPAL
CODE CHAPTER 16.24 TO ALLOW AMENDMENT OR CORRECTION OF
FINAL SUBDIVISION MAPS
The City Council of the City of Colfax does ordain as follows:

Section 1:

Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 16.24 is hereby amended by adding Section 16.24.060 as
provided in the Ordinance attached hereto as Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by this

reference.

Section 2. Superceding Provisions

The provisions of this Ordinance and any resolution adopted pursuant hereto shall supersede and
repeal any previous Ordinance or resolution to the extent the same is in conflict herewith.

Section 3. Severability

If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or
unconstitutional by the final judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall
be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision; and such holding shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions hereof.

Section 4. California Environmental Quality Act Findings

The City of Colfax finds that, if the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act, Public
Resources Code §21000 et seq (hereinafter "CEQA™) apply, the title of this ordinance would constitute a
brief description of the "Project" as required by Section 15062(a)(1) of the Guidelines for Implementation
of the California Environmental Quality Act published by the State of California Office of Planning and
Research (the "CEQA Guidelines™).

FINDING OF NO PROJECT

The City of Colfax finds that adoption of this ordinance does not constitute a "Project™ as that term is
defined by or used in CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines or any court or attorney general opinion construing
the same. Accordingly, the City of Colfax finds that the provisions of CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines
are not applicable to said action.

FINDING OF EXEMPTION

In the event that it is found that the said action constitutes a "Project” as defined by or used in CEQA or
the CEQA Guidelines, which finding would be contrary to the City’s opinion of its action, the City of
Colfax hereby finds that said action is exempt from compliance with CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines,
for the following reasons: The action falls within the exemptions provided by Senate Bill 94, and within
the “common sense” CEQA exemption provided in 14 CCR 15061(b)(3) in that CEQA applies only to
projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be
seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the action may have a significant effect on the








http://qcode.us/codes/placercounty/view.php?topic=8-8_10-8_10_010&frames=on




Book._M _OF MAPS, PAGE 0 of 37

e 123727_’

&

SHADOW WOOD PLACE

A PLANMNED DEVELOPMENT

G A FORT ON OF BLOCK € OF OLFAY
AND A PORTION OF LOT & COF B K 4
OF aDe oM OLFAY, BEING AL A
FORTION OF TUE < OF SECT OM 24
TOWKNSHIP 15 NoRTW, BAMGE 9 EAST, M DM
AND THE NE L4 OF SECTION 3, TOWKNSHIP
14 NORTH, RAMGE © EAST , M DM

EOUNTY OF PLACER

CITY OF COLE S o L) 1

AL U= BRUARY
-_— —_—
MER SMITH |

AUBURN CALIRE DSl







SOUTH ELEVATION

e - - . l

WEST ELEVATION
|—_ .__' . I
:|
i
e ! !
— | "
FR— . o ..: I
I =1 v 7 L (
& o 'r
P F |
AL
NORTH ELEVATION UNIT A2



=

m-

[ LI = SE—

23 af37

oy w39 Ocal

O Cxs}

SOPG VIO LTIV NuEN
LD Vg 100

AVES NOLSNOH M

daueap

HOLDT DT

b s - v s s

W BeethOm O w4 e TO e POUT

$BAR S, BOHEDUE
J—

e

bouk

=r

B e Ol n BT D A SRR
D o T To 1 M

-

]
i 4 y i
REEG
o i
$ou
£k mrwm
§oy ok wld
o - | i
yoay |
W[
pag g il | Y7 o
atles umz .M g wm 3 ww
2AE
[ T il ks
T .ww mm_ww

.-w i mmmaw
a |a |a “E?mw

LR ART Y

SCALE &t

FLOOR PLAN

EITCr Serhio 3

i
2
s m
T :
mn_dw
M_ ._N—
]
e
el P
=
I#
E -m
S B
i
“TT

BCALE 4 e

158 $a
——
ad Late

UNIT A2










o 3 E—g s

4 T{ . e et e am
— i T — e e e
: =,
= — —
== = = = ek Comm

byl B
1 oy

ey
[ ey Sy

WEALE hin o i

-&

=1

1001 LA comT
MO, G D
339) BeB-HA5D

BAC) BEA 140

EAST ELEVATION

! T

BEALE tear o) g

ICALE LA WO

]

DG CONSTRUCTION

Praject: REsORTAL DEVELOmMNT FORL

' SHADOW NOOD PLAC

i
1

;'.-‘-'2= [ ey
i

WEST ELEVATION

i|‘.'[‘||d-ll||---;-i

e b

>
o

AL Lt o

[T I

37



27 of 37

V1 AOOM MOGWHS

Ava NOL H

UPPER F OCOR FPLAN



|

280f37

- -

i 5 8 s

-t !

!

- - ey

i

@E’#& L

s

o

e

S g p e W . B

11




29 of 37

Altooh .






31 of 37

Page 2
Shadow Wood Place
Project Description

feet south of the existing 40-foot right of way of Shadow Wood Place. There are no trees
on the property,

The applicant has already provided structural calculations for the existing retaining wall
along Depot Street and the existing combination onsite retaining wall/foundations which
was reviewed and approved by the City prior to the above applications. The existing six-
foot-high change link at the top of the retaining wall on the south side of Depot Street has
been repaired. The south face of the Depot Street retaining wall has been cleaned and
painted green.

II — Application Requests

The applicant is requesting approval for an Amended Subdivision Map of Shadow Wood
Place Tract No. 469 as shown on the official plat filed in Book M of Maps, Page 84
pursuant to Section 66472.1 of the Subdivision Map Act. The amended subdivision map
will provide changes to the recorded map for the following items:

e Modify the widths of the existing 20 lots to accommodate 20 single family detached
homes with standard front and side yard setbacks except the four (4) lots to
accommodate the fire turn around cul-de-sac

e Dedicate a portion of lot 1 to permit a standard curb return for Depot Street on to
Kneeland Street

e Change the hammer head fire turn around to a cul-de-sac

e Abandonment and dedication of easements

The applicant is submitting a New PUD Plan because the existing PUD Plan has expired.
The New PUD Plan shall address the following items:
e Modify the house architecture to meet the City’s core area District ordinance
e Eliminated attached housing for single family detached homes with a cottage style
consistent with the city core area
e Provide two on-site parking spaces for each home with no garage or shade structure.
e Provide six public on street parking spaces on Shadow Wood Place and additional
spaces along Kneeland Street
e Provided a standard cul-de-sac turn around for Shadow Wood Place
e Provide modifications to standard zoning setbacks and lot standards
e The houses cantilever over this drainage easement a maximum of 6-feet on lot 20 to
4.5-feet on lot 11 as was approved in the last two PUD approvals

The applicant is proposing Setback Reductions be one of the items mitigated with the
Development Agreement to be entered between the Owner/Developer and the City of
Colfax. The City of Colfax setback requirements do not allow adequate lot depth for the




32 of 37

Page 3
Shadow Wood Place
Project Description

proposed homes in this development. The setback reductions shown on the Tentative

Subdivision Map are as follows:

e The rear Set Back Lines (SBL) for Lots 1 through 10 are reduced from the required 20-
foot rear to 18-foot. The usable back yard width is reduced to 5 to 7-feet with a rockery
retaining wall, varying width planter at the top of rockery wall, and two feet of the
Depot Street retaining wall base are occupying the balance of the space

e The front SBL for Lots 9, 11, and 12 fronting the cul-de-sac are reduced from the
required 20-foot front SBL to 5-feet. The front SBL for Lot 10 fronting the cul-de-sac
is reduced from the required 20-foot front SBL to 4-feet. These short distances only
occur on a radial line at a house corner and increases across the width of the house (see
PUD plan)

e The usable rear yard for lots 11 thru 12 is part of an active controlled drainage easement
of 15-feet. There will be constructed a six (6) foot natural looking cobble stream bed

I1I. Project Planned Unit Development

Shadow Wood Place is a 20-unit single family housing PUD development in the City of
Colfax, CA. The project area is in the center of the City, substantially surrounded by
residential development. The applicant’s purpose is to offer a quality, moderately priced
homes in walking distance to local businesses, schools, and community events.

The single-story houses located on lots 11 through 20 have 10-foot interior ceilings
throughout the house and the living room will have a 13-foot ceiling. The overall height of
the single-family home is approximately 14’ tall and 22 feet wide and 54 feet long and
contains eleven hundred eighty-eight square feet (1188 SF — floor plan A).

The two-story homes located on lots 1 through 10 will also have 10-foot interior ceilings
throughout the house and a 13-foot ceiling height in the living room and kitchen area. The
overall height of the exterior of the home is approximately 24 foot tall. The smaller of the
two-story house is twelve hundred thirty-six square feet (1236 SF - floor plan B) and the
larger of the two story’s is fourteen hundred forty square feet 1440 SF — floor plan C).

There are no side yard fences planned. The property line delineation shall use 3:1 grading
and landscaping hedges or bushes. The south rear boundary is already fenced and those that
are not fenced will be shared with the neighbor. There will be constructed a six (6) foot
natural looking cobble stream bed with boulders and natural grasses over the drainage pipe
with in the drainage easement.

The front and side yard landscaping shall use artificial turf, shrubs, ground cover and trees
(all native plant types) to the area.



33 of 37

Page 4
Shadow Wood Place
Project Description

IV - Engineering Site Design Discussions

The existing lot pad grading does not conform to the proposed amended lot layout or the
subgrade of Shadow Wood Place and both shall be re-graded accordingly.

Shadow Wood Place will be constructed to the existing 40-foot street standard having 17
feet of pavement, 3 foot rolled curb and gutter on the north side of the street and having 13
feet of pavement, 3 foot rolled curb including a 4-foot sidewalk on the south side of the
street. A total of six on-street parking shall be staggered on both sides of the street as
detailed on the PUD map. Each proposed house will have two off-street parking spaces.
There will not be a monument sign or special landscaping at the entrance to Shadow Wood
Place.

Kneeland Street will be constructed at a 60-foot street standard having 23 feet of pavement,
3-foot vertical curb and gutter with a 4-foot sidewalk within a 30-foot half right-of-way
section from the south subdivision property line to Shadow Wood Place. Kneeland Street
pavement section from Shadow Wood Place north to Depot Street shall be reduced to 19-
feet to accommodate a new curb return at Depot Street and the steep grade of the existing
street (see the PUD plan). Kneeland Street is currently constructed mostly on the east side
of centerline to accommodate Depot street vertical alignment and drainage. The new
construction of the west side of Kneeland Street centerline shall maintain the existing east
side grading of the street for an additional 14-foot travel lane and then create a shoulder
grade break at 2 percent to the lip. This design will stop the sheet flow of the upper
drainage shed of Depot Street draining onto the lots on the east side of the street. A valley
gutter shall be constructed across the entrance to Shadow Wood Place do to intersection
grading needed raising to balance the dirt on-site, reduce the on-site rear retaining walls
heights on lots 1 thru 10, and eliminate the drainage crossing that is in conflict with PCWA
required pipe separations public water and drain pipes. On-street parking shall be provided.

Depot Street shall not have any on-street parking for this proposed subdivision or for
adjacent properties. “No Parking” signs shall be installed. The project will not have any
additional street improvements for Depot Street. Depot Street is not needed for access to
this proposed subdivision. Public access and public utility rights to Depot Street will be
preserved as dedicated in the recorded subdivision.

The existing onsite 6 sewer line will remain in place and used in the project design. The
sewer line shall be inspected, tested and repaired in coordination with the City Engineer.
There are 20 existing sewer services and 10 will be utilized and extended to the right of
way. The remaining 10 existing sewer services will be abandoned to the satisfaction of the
City Engineer.















Item 5A
1o0f5
City of Colfax
City Council Minutes
Regular Meeting of Wednesday, May 22, 2019
City Hall Council Chambers
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA

1

2
2A.

2B.

2C.

2D.

CLOSED SESSION

THERE WAS NO CLOSED SESSION AT THIS MEETING

OPEN SESSION

Call to Order

Mayor Fatula called the open session to order at 7:00P.M.

Pledge of Allegiance

Foxey McCleary, 127 Saunders Lane, led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call

Council members present: Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza
Approval of Agenda Order

Agenda item 8A was postponed to June 26 at the applicant’s request. On a motion by
Councilmember Burruss, seconded by Councilmember Lomen, the City Council approved the
agenda order with the postponement 8A.

AYES:

5A.

5B.

5C

5D

Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza

PRESENTATION

THERE WERE NO PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS AT THIS MEETING.
PUBLIC HEARING

There were no public hearings at this meeting

CONSENT CALENDAR

Minutes - Regular Meeting April 24, 2019

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 24, 2019.
Quarterly Investment Report - Quarter Ending March 31, 2019

Recommendation: For information only.

Cash Summary - April 2019

Recommendation: Accept and file

City Funding Support for Colfax 3rd of July Event

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 14-2019 authorizing a $500 donation to Colfax Green
Machine, coordinators of the 2019 3rd of July event, to be used towards the purchase of
fireworks for the 2019 3rd of July event.

On a motion by Council Member Burruss, seconded by Councilmember Lomen, Council approved
the Consent Calendar.

AYES:

Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza

City of Colfax 1
City Council Minutes May 22,2019



7A.

Item SA

PUBLIC COMMENT

Will Stockwin, Colfax resident
e Brought two vehicle issues to the Council’s attention. At 107 Pine, there is a vehicle that
rolled end-over-end and has been there for over a month. On South Main, toward
Newman, a blue Dodge van is impeding visibility around the curve. This turns South
Main into a one lane street. Drivers going around the curve cannot see each other until
they are in it. The City Manager said that a 30 day notice has been placed on the vehicle
at 107 Pine and the Sheriff is working on it. He will ask the Sheriff to address both.
Mayor Fatula also mentioned that there are people sleeping in cars behind Lumenaris.
The City Manager will refer this to the Sheriff as well.
Tim Ryan
e Mr. Ryan knows the owner of the blue van and will talk to him. Joe and Mary Fatula,
Colfax business owners
Andrea Harrison, Colfax Green Machine
e Ms. Harrison passed out 3 of July shirts and buttons and thanked the Council for the
$500 donation. The goal is to raise $15,000; they have raised $1,100 so far. There will
be a bingo fund raiser on July 3; the buy-in is $20. Local businesses are being solicited.
So far, there are 28 vendors with a D] on one side and a country band (Tom Drennan)
on the other. They are seeking other vendors.

COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS
Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers

Councilmember Douglass

e Councilmember Douglass attended the April 25 City/County Dinner.

e He asked the City Manager to look into the cost of the City’s animal control contract
because the County’s cost increased by $60,000 and he wants to know how that will
affect the City.

e He attended the wine and chocolate event on April 27.

e He reported that Pioneer Energy had a closed session but did not discuss the
particulars. PG&E will evidently have a whole new Board. The Governor does not
approve of the proposed replacements because he prefers local members.

e Mr. Douglass attended the May 16 SACOG meeting, the theme of which was how to
successfully develop infill clusters.

¢ He reported the Project Go has money available to replace windows and insulate
houses.

e He also attended the May 21 potluck, and the Chamber of Commerce mixer.

Council Member Mendoza

e Met with Adult Care and the president of a California mental health organization.
She hopes to secure funding for mental health programs in Colfax.

e She reported on her attendance at events in Washington DC, including improving
local response to catastrophic incidents, public safety, transportation. Public funds
may be available to address the Wall fire.

e AB 477 (emergency preparedness) is moving forward. Colfax needs to watch this
bill and be ready to go after funds when it is adopted.

2 of 5

City of Colfax 2
City Council Minutes May 22,2019






Item SA

e Reported that there have been 59.5 inches of rainfall with more to come.
Tim Ryan
e The Chamber’s goal is to attend as many functions as possible
e Reported that the mixer was well attended and successful, and thanked the Mayor,
Council Members Burruss and Douglass and the City Manager for attending.
e The Chamber is working on metal signs which he will give to Fred Abbott.

Fred Abbott
e Reported on the art walk and car show which were well attended in spite of poor
weather.

¢ Is working with the Chamber on signage
e Gave an update on Colfax Connection. Articles are due by the 20t. So far, it has been
well received
Sharon Conners
e Reported on the May 11 spring cleanup and thanked Council Members Douglass and
Burruss.
e Reported on the May 15 election of officers. Council Member Douglass is now
president of SVCC.
e Bingo will be on June 2. This is the end of the second quarter so lunch is free and the
prize is a trip to Reno.
e They are working on ping pong tables and gift bags for members.
Foxy McCleary
e Reported on the Chocolate and Wine Event. She will be doing free portraits for
certain individuals next year.
e Monday, May 27 is Memorial Day. Ceremonies will be held at various cemeteries.
e The VFW will meet on the second Sunday from 8-11 a.m.

8 COUNCIL BUSINESS
8A. Colfax Net Variance: Postponed to June 26.

8B. Solace Graphics / Thumbler.net - Community Branding

STAFF PRESENTATION: Wes Heathcock, City Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 15-2019 authorizing
the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Solace Graphics in an amount not to exceed
$4,110.

The vendor gave a lengthy presentation on the benefits of community branding. Discussion ensued
regarding how the branding will be established and what it will be. Mayor Fatula and Council
Member Burruss volunteered to participate in the branding process and discussions. All local
stakeholders will also be solicited for input.

Council Member Lomen moved to adopt the recommended Resolution. The motion was seconded
by Council Member Burruss and passed unanimously.
AYES: Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza

8C.  South Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project (Federal Project No. CML-
5187(010) - Award of Contract and budget amount.
Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager

4 of 5

City of Colfax 4
City Council Minutes May 22,2019



Item 5A
5of5

Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 15-2019 authorizing the
City Manager to (1) Award a construction contract to Granite Construction Company in the
amount of $2,735,074.00 and authorize the City Manager to execute change orders up to
the budgeted amount; and (2) Amend the project budget in the amount of $401,980 from
Fund 385 for a total project budge of $3,711,040.00 including a 5.5% contingency. Receive
update and direct staff as appropriate.

The City Manager presented the item and confirmed that there will be no City general fund money
in the project. The project is funded by grants and development fees, including a $350,000 PCTPA
grant that was approved today. Discussion ensued regarding several individual line items in the
construction bid which the City Manager will research and report on.

There was no public comment.

Council Member Lomen moved to adopt the recommended Resolution. The motion was seconded
by Council Member Burruss and passed by the following vote of the Council”

AYES: Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen,
NOES: Mendoza

9 GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE
BUSINESS OF THE CITY

Council Member Lomen reminded the community that the Colfax Net matter will be on the
June 26 agenda and that the City is upgrading its media platform for streaming of Council
meetings.

Council Member Douglass mentioned that AB 58 will allow bar to stay open until 4:00 a.m.

Council Member Burruss said that the Sheriff’'s budget will be on the agenda for future
discussion. She would like Sheriff hours to be increased to their previous level for at least a
year, to be reviewed annually. The City Manager said this issue will be on an agenda in June.

10 ADJOURNMENT

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Fatula adjourned the meeting at 9:19PM.

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 12th day of June 2019

City of Colfax 5
City Council Minutes May 22,2019



1of4

Staff Report to City Council

FOR THE JUNE 12, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager
Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director
Subject: Sales Tax Analysis - Quarter Ended 03/31/2019
Budget Impact Overview:
|N/A: | Funded: & | Un-funded: | Amount: | Fund(s):

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information Only

Summary

The City has received the final accounting of Sales and Use Tax revenues for the quarter ended March
31, 2019.

Analysis

A summary of sales tax revenues for last fiscal year and the first three quarters of the current fiscal year
are reflected in the chart below. (Note: Based on a business reporting error — the City had previously
been over allocated $74,952 in sales tax for the quarter ended 12/31/2018 which was included in the
last Sales Tax Analysis report. The State has corrected the allocation and the correction is reflected in
the applicable quarter).

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 (Quarter Ended 03/31/2019)

Total sales tax revenue for the quarter ended (QE) March 31, 2019 was $336,721 which is 5% lower
than the previous quarter and 5% lower than the same quarter for last fiscal year. At the end of this
quarter report, we are at 77% of our annual budget (Mid-year review estimate). As mentioned in the
mid-year budget review in February it is anticipated that we will exceed sales tax.

City of Colfax 1
Staff Report June 12,2019 Sales Tax Analysis — Quarter Ended 03/31/19



20f4
Sales and Use Tax Revenue History

The attached chart T Retail Sales and Use Tax History T reports the history of sales tax revenues since
1999. As reported previously, the fiscal 2015-2016 year included the true up and final adjustments
related to the end of the decade old triple flip sales tax program which ended December 31, 2015. This
final adjustment is estimated to be approximately $100,000 of the growth reported for the 2015-2016
fiscal year. Considering this adjustment was related to the time period of the entire triple flip process it
should be considered when reviewing year to year changes in revenues.

Attachments

1. Graph — City of Colfax — Retail Sales Tax Revenues
2. Chart - City of Colfax — Retail Sales Tax History

City of Colfax 2
Staff Report June 12,2019 Sales Tax Analysis - Quarter Ended 03/31/2019



City of Colfax
Retail Sales and Use Tax Revenues
(Actuals Through Quarter Ended 03/31/2019)

Sales Tax by Quarter

$500,000

$450,000

$400,000

$350,000 [o O
$300,000 - :
$250,000 -
$200,000 -
—
——
150,000 -
$150, N S
100,000
$ QE 09/30 QE12/31 QE 03/31 QE 06/30
2018-2019 Budget $337,500 $337,500 $337,500 $337,500
~O~Fiscal Year 2018-2019 $354,152 $353,870 $336,721
—&—Fiscal Year 2017-2018 $302,974 $330,457 $353,642 $383,667
=0=2016-2017 $260,536 $284,588 $282,486 $275,950
~-2015-2016 $259,216 $282,233 $272,685 $290,223
=2014-2015 $270,405 $265,207 $202,928 $217,802
ey=2013-2014 $301,739 $228,157 $182,183 $216,650
ali=2012-2013 $190,104 $170,947 $148,672 $197,105
e=ge2011-2012 $144,554 $146,466 $125,690 $155,233







Item 5C

Staff Report to City Council

FOR THE JUNE 12, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager
Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director
Subject: Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Amendments
Budget Impact Overview:
|N/A: | Funded: & | Un-funded: | Amount: | Fund(s):

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 19-2019 amending the Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Operating Budget

Summary

As part of the biennial budget process, the City Council approved the budget for Fiscal Year 2019-
2020 in June of 2017.

Staff completed a review of the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budget based on current staffing, capital project
status, and current fiscal year actuals. A public workshop was held on May 15, 2019 to review status
and staff recommendations for amendments. After discussions, Council requested staff to add an
additional $20,000 to the General Fund — City Council budget for additional contingency for grant
writing expenses to ensure the City has ample resources for procuring Grant monies.

The most notable change in the proposed Budget Amendment is the increase in capital expenditures.
The capital expenditure budget for the fiscal year was adopted at $721K. The Budget Amendment is
in excess of $10M primarily due to grant funded projects rolled forward in the amount of $3M, and
anticipated new grant funding in the amount of $6M. Attachment #4 details the total capital
expenditure budget.

Recommendation

Staff recommends City Council adopt the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Amendment as attached.

Attachments
1. Resolution 19-2019
2. FY 2019-2020 - Budget Amendment - Fund Summary
3. FY 2019-2020 - Budget Amendment - Revenues/Expenses
4. FY 2019-2020 - Budget Amendment - Capital Expenditures

City of Colfax 1
Staff Report June 12,2019 Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Amendments






Fund

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

XXX
571
572

210-17
218
241-44
250
253
270
292
342/343

3XX

560
561
563

XXX

Dept

General Fund - Unrestricted

000
100
110
120
160
200
300
400
425
450
500
530

Total

Central Services

City Council
Administration/Finance
Legal

Fire

Sheriff

Building Department
Engineering

Planning

Buildings and Grounds
Parks

Land Development
General Fund - Unrestricted

General Fund - Restricted

Total

Capital Project Reserve
AB939 Landfill Diversion
Landfill - Postclosure Maint
General Fund - Restricted

Special Revenues

Total

Mitigation Funds

Support Law Enforcement
CDBG Program Income
Streets-Roads/Transportation
Gas Taxes

Beverage Recycling

Fire Capital Fund

Fire & Rec Const Mitigation
Special Revenues

Capital Projects

Total

Wildland Fire Equipment
Capital Projects

Enterprise Funds

Total

Sewer WWTP Maint and Ops
Sewer Collections Systems
WWTP/Debt Service

Capital Projects

Reserves

Enterprise Funds

TOTAL ALL FUNDS

City of Colfax - FY2019-2020
Fiscal Year Budget Amendment -Fund Summary
Review Date: May 15, 2019

Item 5C

3of5

Net Change in Fund Balance
Revenues Expenses Capital Projects/Transfers In(Out) (Revenues - Expenses )
Review Adopted Review Adopted Review Adopted Review Adopted

05/15/2019 | Budget | Difference 05/15/2019 Budget Difference 05/15/2019 Budget Difference 05/15/2019( Budget | Difference
2,243,688 | 2,159,563 84,126 - - (648,056) (394,056) (254,000) 1,595,632 | 1,765,507 (169,875)

- - 134,605 134,605 - - - - (134,605)]  (134,605) -
- - 84,800 29,800 55,000 - - - (84,800)]  (29,800)]  (55,000)

- - 273,045 273,045 - - - - (273,045)]  (273,045) -

- - 61,600 61,600 - - - - (61,600)]  (61,600) -

- - 64,000 64,000 - - - - (64,000)]  (64,000) -
- - 623,437 600,437 23,000 - - - (623,437)] (600,437)]  (23,000)

- - 108,900 108,900 - - - - (108,900)]  (108,900) -

- - 21,000 21,000 - - - - (21,000)]  (21,000) -

- - 85,800 85,800 - - - - (85,800)]  (85,800) -

- - 210,495 210,495 - - - - (210,495)]  (210,495) -

- - 149,419 149,419 - - - - (149,419)]  (149,419) -
65,000 65,000 - 47,300 47,300 - - - - 17,700 17,700 -
2,308,688 | 2,224,563 84,126 1,864,401 1,786,401 78,000 (648,056) (394,056)]  (254,000) (203,769) 44,105 | (247,875)

- - - - - 50,000 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 -
80,000 80,000 - 88,134 88,134 - - - - (8,134) (8,134) -
80,000 80,000 - 88,134 88,134 - 50,000 50,000 - 41,866 41,866 -
224,000 71,640 | 152,360 - - - (175,000) - (175,000) 49,000 71,640 (22,640)
100,000 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 - - - - - - -

300 300 - 6,000 6,000 - - - - (5,700) (5,700) -
153,500 132,500 21,000 251,156 251,156 - 97,656 118,656 (21,000) 0) 0) -
41,600 41,600 - 19,000 19,000 - (22,600) (22,600) - - - -
12,000 12,000 - 5,000 5,000 - - - - 7,000 7,000 -
40,000 30,100 9,900 - - - (20,000) - (20,000) 20,000 30,100 (10,100)
571,400 388,140 183,260 381,156 381,156 - (119,944) 96,056 (216,000) 70,300 103,040 (32,740)
13,000 13,000 - - - - (13,000) (13,000) - - - -
13,000 13,000 - - - - (13,000) (13,000) - - - -

1,256,798 | 1,236,798 20,000 1,200,354 1,200,354 - (30,000) (160,000) 130,000 26,444 (123,556) 150,000
195,277 195,277 - 238,469 238,469 - 289,000 40,000 249,000 245,808 (3,192) 249,000
544,886 | 544,886 - 438,974 438,974 - (437,500) (437,500) - (331,588)] (331,588) -
6,000,000 6,000,000 - (6,000,000) - (6,000,000) - - -
- - - - - 97,500 97,500 - 97,500 97,500 -
7,996,962 | 1,976,962 | 6,020,000 1,877,797 1,877,797 - (6,081,000) (460,000)| (5,621,000) 38,164 (360,836) 399,000
[ 10,970,050 | 4,682,664] 6,287,386 | [ 4,211,489 4,133,489 78,000 ] | (6,812,000  (721,000)] (6,091,000) | (53,439)] (171,825) 118,386 |




City of Colfax - FY2019-2020

Fiscal Year Budget Amendment - Revenues/Expenses

Review Date: May 15, 2019

General Fund - Unrestricted

Revenues Expenses

1 [Sales Tax Increase - Based on current revenues $ 132,126 | $ -

2 |Decrease in TOT Revenues (Hotel delay to mid 2020) $ (100,000)| $ -

3 JCannabis Business Tax - Increase - Not in adopted budget $ 32,000 | $ -

4 linterest Income - Increase due LAIF earning % and increased fund balance $ 20,000 | $ -
5 |Grant Writer/Income Survey - Increase - Roll forward from FY2018-2019 $ - $ 55,000
6 |Sheriff Contract Increase - Based on current estimate (same service level) $ - $ 23,000
Total $ 84,126 | $ 78,000

Special Revenues/Capital Projects

Revenues Expenses

Mitigation Fees - FY2019 Rollforward - Timing of new development projects $ 162,260 | $ -

Streets/Roads - Projected increase in LTF/STA Funding (PCTPA estimate) $ 21,000 | $ -

Total $ 183,260 | $ =

Enterprise Funds - Net Change

Revenues Expenses

9 |interest Income - Increase due LAIF earning % and increased fund balance $ 20,000 | $ -

10 |State Water Board Grant (All capital) - Pending $ 6,000,000 | $ -

Total $ 6,020,000 | $ =
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 6,287,386 | $ 78,000

Item 5C
4 of 5



Item 5C

S of 5

City of Colfax
Fiscal year Budget Amendment - Capital Expenditures

FY 2019-2020

Rolled
Forward from

Review Date: May 15, 2019

Adopted FY2018-2019 Total Projected
Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Budget New FY2019-2020
Fund Description
General Fund
100-100  [IT Equipment/Software $ 5,000 $ 5,000
100-100 Record Rooms Upgrades (FY2018-2019) $ - $ 5,000 $ 5,000 | |Project rolled forward from FY2018-2019 Budget
100-100 New Accounting Software (FY2018-2019) $ - $ 30,000 $ 30,000 | |Project rolled forward from FY2018-2019 Budget
$ - $ -
Buildings & Grounds
270/571 Corp Yard Security/Recycling Improvements $ - $ 46,078 $ 46,078 | |Project rolled forward from FY2018-2019 Budget
100-500/2XX [Roof Replacement - Fire Station $ 30,000 $ 15,000 || $ 45,000 | |Unknown structural improvements. Review possible USDA funding and fire impact fees
100-500  |ADA Project $ 20,000 || $ 20,000 | |[New budget item
100-500/2XX [Depot/City Hall Painting $ 25,000 |1 $ 25,000 | |Mitigation Fees to be used as appropriate
100-500/2XX | Septic system at Corp Yard $ 15,000 || $ 15,000 | [Mitigation Fees to be used as appropriate
100-530/2XX [Parking Improvements at Park $ 10,000 || $ 10,000 | [Mitigation Fees to be used as appropriate
100-530/2XX |Water Meter at Lot of Art $ 15,000 || $ 15,000 | [Mitigation Fees to be used as appropriate
100/250/560 |New Dump Truck $ 100,000 |1 $ 100,000 | To be used by Public Works and WWTP
Steets & Roads
3XX Street Project TBD - Pavement Management Plan $ 200,000 $ 300,000 || $ 500,000 | |Mitigation Fees, Grants, General Funds. Anticipated value of projects increased.
385 Roundabout Project (FY2018-2019) $ - $ 3,200,000 $ 3,200,000 | [Rolled forward from FY2018-2019 Budget - Current Estimate of Remaining balance
2XX Culver St (CDBG Program Income) $ - $ 205,000 $ 205,000
Fire Capital
100-200/292 [Wildland Fire Equipment (VFA Grant) $ 26,000 $ 26,000 | |50% Grant
100-200/292 [Structural Turnouts $ - $ 20,000 |1 $ 20,000 | |10 Year service life - current equipment to be reviewed for testing. New budget item.
$ .
Sewer Plant and Collection Systems
560-000 DAF or SAF for Algae Control from Ponds* $ 200,000 $ 200,000 | |To be included in Water Board Grant Request
561-000 Lift Station #3 Force Main* $ 199,000 $ 199,000 | |To be included in Water Board Grant Request
560-000 Solar at WWTP* $ - $ 2,500,000 ] $ 2,500,000 |[To be included in Water Board Grant Request
561-000 Colfax Ave Sewer Repair - | & | Mitigation project continuation* | $ 50,000 || $ - $ 3,051,000 || $ 3,101,000 | [To be included in Water Board Grant Request - Review USDA funding.
561-000 Lift Station Pump and motor replacement $ 11,000 || $ 29,000 $ 40,000 | |Project rolled forward from FY2018-2019 Budget (Short Lived Asset Reserve)
560-000 Pond 3 Fissure Repair (FY2018-2019) - Funded by Ins/FEMA | $ - $ 415,000 $ 415,000 | |Rolled forward from FY2018-2019 Budget - Current Estimate of Remaining balance
560-000 Fencing & Gate (FY2018-2019) $ 25,000 || $ 20,000 || $ 45,000 | |Project rolled forward from FY2018-2019 Budget
WWTP
$ _
TOTAL $ 721,000 || $ 3,955,078 || $ 6,091,000 || $ 10,767,078
*City is actively pursuing grant fund opportunities
Note: As Mitigation Fees become available - application of fees to proposed capital projects will be reviewed



Item 5D

Staff Report to City Council

FOR THE JUNE 12, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager
Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director
Subject: Annual Review of Administrative Policies and Procedures
Budget Impact Overview:
|N/A: | Funded: & | Un-funded: | Amount: | Fund(s):

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 20-2019 revising Administrative Policies and
Procedures T Financial Policies dated October 8, 2014.

Summary

The City Administrative policies and procedures for 1) Financial Policies, and 2) Investment Policy
were both adopted by Resolution No. 29-2014 in October of 2014 and stipulate that the policies will be
reviewed annually as part of the budget process.

Staff completed a review of the policies and presented recommended revisions to the Financial Policies
at the Public Workshop/Budget Review on May 15, 2019. There were no recommended changes to the
Investment Policy.

Recommendation

Staff recommends City Council adopt Resolution 18-2019 revising Administrative Policies and
Procedures T Financial Policies dated October 8, 2014.

Attachments
1. Resolution 20-2019
2. Financial Policies z Recommended revisions highlighted
3. Investment Policy

City of Colfax 1
Staff Report June 12,2019 Annual Review of Administrative Policies and Procedures



Item 5D

City of Colfax

City Council
Resolution Ne 20-2019

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLFAX REVISING
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES — FINANCIAL POLICIES
DATED OCTOBER 8, 2014

WHEREAS, the Administrative Policies and Procedures were adopted by Resolution 29-2014 in
October 2014, and

WHEREAS, the Administrative Policies and Procedures stipulate that the policies will be reviewed
annually as part of the budget process, and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Colfax held a public meeting/budget workshop on May
15, 2019 and reviewed staff recommendations for Financial Policies revisions;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that the
Administrative Policies and Procedures - Financial Policies will be revised as reflected in the
attached summary documents:

1. Financial Policies - Recommended revisions highlighted

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular
Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12" day of June 2019 by the following vote
of the Council:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Joe Fatula, Mayor

ATTEST:

Wes Heathcock, City Manager

City of Colfax 1
Resolution 20-2019 Annual Review of Administrative Policies and Procedures






Item 5D

PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES

This document discusses the most important elements of financial management in one
comprehensive centralized format and is organized into the following areas of discussion:

A.
. Revenues

OmmUOw

Operating Budget

Expenditures

Cash Management and Investments

Capital Financing and Debt Management
Fund Accounting and Reserve Fund Policies
Financial Reporting

A. Operating Budget

1. The budget will be adopted by the City Council no later than June 30™ of each year.

a.
b.

The City Manager will develop and present a biennial budget.
The City should strive to develop a multi-year financial plan that is updated as part of the
periodic budget process.

2. A calendar of events related to budget development will be presented to City Council by
April 1* of each year.

a. Scheduled activities will encourage early involvement with the City Council and the
public.

3. A balanced provisional budget will be presented to City Council for review and adoption
with total projected expenditures not exceeding total estimated revenues.

a.

b.

g.

The budget will be developed in a way that facilitates public study and effectively
communicates key economic and fiscal issues to City Council and the public.

Actual revenues, expenditures, reserve balances and fund balances for the prior fiscal
year and estimates for the current year will be provided.

Forecasts require clearly stated assumptions. Estimations should be conservative but
reasonable.

The City budget must comply with the annual determination of the City’s appropriations
limit calculated in accordance with Article XIIIB of the Constitution of the State of
California and must adopt an annual resolution to this effect.

One-time revenue sources are not to be relied upon to fund ongoing operations.

Should it be necessary, City Council may approve a planned use of accumulated fund
balances in prior years for inclusion in the budget.

A multi-year capital improvement plan should be developed so that project priorities and
debt capacity can be analyzed.

4. The Finance Department will maintain a system for monitoring the City’s budget
performance.

a.

The City Manager will provide the City Council with a mid-year review of the City’s
financial activities. The review will be presented in February and compare annual budget
projections with actual results.

4 of 11



Item 5D

B. Revenues

The City will strive to maintain a diversified and stable revenue base to minimize the impact

of economic fluctuation.

a. Revenue forecasts shall be realistically estimated and based on the best information
available. The City will follow a vigorous policy of collecting revenues.

b. Trends analyzing the dependence on distinct revenue sources shall be included in the
budget documents for consideration by the City Council.

The City will seek out, apply for, and effectively administer federal, state, and other grants

that address the City’s current operating and capital priorities.

a. All potential grants will be carefully examined for matching requirements.

b. Grants may be rejected if programs must be continued with local resources after grant
funds are exhausted.

The City shall develop and maintain a comprehensive list of various fees and charges.

a. The City should strive to cover the full cost of providing non-tax and discretionary fee-
based service operations except to the extent that City Council approves defined subsidy
levels by program area.

b. Enterprise funds will have revenues sufficient to meet all cash operating expenses, capital
expenses, approved cash reserves and any debt service.

c. Rate studies should be conducted periodically (three to five years) to ensure the proper
balance of costs and service charges.

Economic downturns and gaps in cash flow will be addressed as soon as recognized.

a. Council may-must approve inter-fund loans, except for short-term working capital loans.

approved reimbursable grants and projects, are permitted.

1. Short-term working capital loans are also permitted for temporary (less than
one year) timing differences in cash flows when expenditures are incurred
before revenue is collected.

a-111. Interfund loans will not be used to solve ongoing structural budget issues and
will not hinder the accomplishment of any function or project for which the
lending fund was established.

b. Deficit financing and borrowing to support on-going operations is not the policy of the
City as a response to long-term revenue shortfalls
1.  Revenue forecast will be revised and expenses will be reduced to conform to the
revised long-term forecast
ii. Revenue increases will be considered as appropriate.

5. The City will review contracts and leases, which result in revenues to the City on a timely

basis in order to provide for careful evaluation by the City Council.

C. Expenditures

The City will propose operating expenditures, which can be supported from ongoing
revenues.

S5of11

i. Short-term inter-fund loans for working capital to provide cash for Council-+- - - - { Formatte



Item 5D

a. Before the City undertakes any agreements that would create fixed on-going expenses,
the cost implications of such agreements will be fully determined for current and future
years.

b. The City will invest in technology and other efficiency tools to maximize productivity

c. The City will hire additional staff only after the need of such positions has been
demonstrated and documented.

d. The City will strive to pay competitive market level compensation to its employees.

e. All compensation planning and collective bargaining will focus on the total cost of
compensation, which includes salary, health care benefits, paid leave, pension
contribution and other benefits.

The City will maintain expenditure categories according to state statute and administrative

regulation.

Costs of service will be budgeted and charged to the fund performing the service. Cost

allocation methodology will be reviewed and approved in the annual budgeting process.

D. Cash Management and Investments

1.

The City’s investment policy will be reviewed annually as part of the budget process.

The responsibility of investing City funds rests with the City Manager and Finance Director
who are to exercise due diligence to adhere to the investment policy. Quarterly (or more
frequent) reports will be provided to City Council presenting a summary of the portfolio
status and compliance with the conditions set forth in the investment policy.

Investments shall be made in conformance with the City’s investment policy with the
primary objectives of:

a. Preservation of Capital and protection of Principal

b. Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet operating needs

c. Security of City Funds and investments

d. Maximization of return on the portfolio

E. Capital Financing and Debt Management

I.

2.

The City will seek to maintain a high credit rating through sound financial practices as a

basis for minimizing borrowing costs.

Major capital improvement projects will be funded using the most financially prudent

method available.

a. The City will make every effort to use pay-as-you-go financing for capital improvement
projects. Debt financing for a project can be used if the overall project cost exceeds
anticipated available resources and/or if the cost of financing is favorable as compared to
the use of City investment holdings over the financing term.

The City will monitor all forms of debt annually in conjunction with the budget preparation

process and report concerns and remedies, if necessary, to City Council. The City will

diligently monitor its compliance with bond covenants.

The City will not issue long-term debt to finance current operations. Debt financing should

only be used for long-term capital improvement projects with a useful life exceeding the term

of the financing and for which the project revenues or specific identified revenue sources are
sufficient to service the long term debt.

6 of 11



Item 5D

The City will use a lease-purchase method of financing for equipment if the lease rates are

The City will use Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) definitions of fund
balance for the annual financial reports (audits) and for all other financial reporting.

1. General Fund — The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those

ii. Special Revenue Funds — Used to account for revenues derived from specific
taxes or other earmarked revenue sources. They are usually required by statute or
other local ordinance to finance particular governmental functions or activities.

iii.  Capital Projects Funds — Used to account for and report financial resources that
are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays

iv. Debt Service Funds — Used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest, even if

1. Enterprise Funds (Sewer) — Used to account for the operations of self-supporting
governmental activities that render services or goods to the public.

1. The intent of the City is that the costs of providing goods and services to the

general public on a continuing basis be financed and recovered primarily

5.
more favorable than the City’s expected overall investment rate of return.
E. Fund Accounting and Reserve Fund Policies
1.
2. Fund Descriptions are as follows:
a. Governmental Funds
required to be accounted for in another fund.
it is being accumulated for future year’s payments.
b. Business Activity Funds
through user charges.
3.

The City will maintain Reserve Fund Balances in an effort to stabilize the City’s fiscal base

for unpredictable fluctuations in major revenues, protect against reducing service levels or

raising taxes and fees due to revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenditures, and
provide for innovative opportunities for the betterment of the community.

a. General Fund Revenue Reserve — The City’s fiscal goal is to maintain annual expenditure
increases at a sustainable growth rate, and to limit expenditures to anticipated revenue in
order to maintain a balanced budget. The City target is to maintain an unrestricted fu